
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning & Development Department • 200 West Washington Street, 3rd Floor • Phoenix, Arizona 85003 • 602-262-6656  
 

October 10, 2023 
 
 
 
Stephen W. Anderson 
Gammage & Burnham, PLC 
40 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004 
 
RE: MINOR AMENDMENT OF ALGODÓN CENTER PUD (Z-19-G-00-5) AREA GENERALLY 

BOUNDED BY 91ST AVENUE, 99TH AVENUE, THOMAS ROAD TO CAMPBELL 
AVENUE 

 
Dear Mr. Anderson, 
 
I have had the opportunity to review your request for a Minor Amendment to the Algodón Center 
PUD that you submitted on behalf of John F Long Properties LLLP, et al. You have requested 
the modification to garage design standards, parking requirements, and technical corrections.  
 
Section 671 Planned Unit Development of the Phoenix Zoning Ordinance, states that 
amendments not meeting the criteria for a major amendment shall be deemed to be a minor 
amendment and may be administratively approved by the Planning and Development Director.  
 
Upon review of this material and through consultation with other Planning and Development 
staff, I have determined that this request is a reasonable modification to the existing PUD 
ordinance and I therefore approve the amendment described herein. An updated Development 
Narrative for the Algodón Center PUD reflecting the changes approved through this request 
shall be submitted to the Planning and Development Department within 30 days of the approval 
of this request.  
 
This minor amendment shall be approved, subject to the following changes: 
 

1)       An updated Development Narrative for the Algodón Center PUD reflecting  
      the changes approved through this request shall be submitted to the Planning and  
      Development Department within 30 days of approval of this request. The updated  
      Development Narrative shall be consistent with the Development Narrative dated 
      February 15, 2023, as modified by the following stipulations:  

 
a. Page 1, Cover Sheet: Modify the submittal dates as follows:  

• 1ST MINOR AMENDMENT APPROVED: JANUARY 17, 2023 
• 2ND MINOR AMENDMENT APPROVED: OCTOBER 2, 2023 

 
b. The modification to the Non-residential and Multifamily Development Standards 

table, Page 11:  
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Open Space for Multifamily 
Residential 

A minimum open space area of 20% of the 
gross site area is required, unless the 

multifamily residential use is vertically integrated 
with ground floor retail uses, in which case the 

minimum improved open space area 
shall be 5% of the gross site area. 

 
c. The deletion of approval of the Single Family Architectural Appeals Board for 45-

foot-wide lots, Single Family Detached Development Standards Table, Page 14:   
 

Density 5.5 du/acre maximum 4 du/ac maximum 
Minimum Lot Width 45’,  

Lots with a minimum lot width 
less than 45 feet are subject to 

approval of the design advisor or 
the Single-Family Architectural 

Appeals Board for demonstrating 
enhanced architecture that 
minimizes the impact of the 

garage. 

70’ 

 
d. The addition of the Western Garden Cottage Series to the Single Family 

Detached Developments Standards and Exhibits, Page 14 and Page 64: 
 

Minimum Setbacks 
Front 10’ 10’ 

Garage 18’ 18’ 
Side-Loaded Garage 10’ 10’ 

Side 5’/5’ 5’/10’ 
Rear 15’ 20’ 

35’ Wide Western Garden Cottage Series: Per Elevations and Floor Plans in 
Exhibit 12.3 

 
e. The deletion of an editorial error in the Commercial and Multifamily Landscape 

Standards, Perimeter Property Landscape Lines (rear, sides, not adjacent to a 
street), Page 16: 
 
Perimeter Property Landscape Lines 
(rear, sides, not adjacent to a street) 

2) Planting Quantity:  
• One (1) tree for every twenty 

(20) feet of Street frontage.  
 

f. The modification to the Parking Standards Table, Parking Spaces, Page 21: 
 
Parking Spaces Surface parking space and drive aisle dimensions for 

all non-residential land uses using perpendicular parking 
shall be eight and one-half (8 1/2) feet wide by eighteen 
(18) feet deep. Residential parking can include 1 ½ feet of 
overhang at the front end of the space to meet length 
requirements. 35’ Wide Western Garden Cottage Series – 
One parking space required.  
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The changes described are minor and apply to garage design standards, parking standards, 
and editorial errors. This clarification will prevent any confusion regarding development 
standards and parking requirements. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact the Village Planner, Nayeli Sanchez Luna, at 
nayeli.sanchez.luna@phoenix.gov or (602) 534-9938.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joshua Bednarek  
Planning and Development Director 
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Changes to PUD narrative, date stamped October 2, 2023 
c: Z-19-G-00-5 file 
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